
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 

 
Tuesday, 19th March, 2013 

 
2.30 pm 

 
Wantsum Room, Sessions House, County Hall, 

Maidstone 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 





 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 
 
 

Tuesday, 19th March, 2013, at 2.30 pm Ask for: Geoff Mills 
Wantsum Room, Sessions House, County 
Hall, Maidstone 

Telephone 01622 694289, 
geoff.mills@kent.gov.uk 

   
Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the start of the meeting outside the meeting 

room 
 

Membership (9) 
 
Conservative (7): Mr P B Carter (Chairman), Mr R W Gough (Vice-Chairman), 

Mr M C Dance, Mr D A Hirst, Mr P J Homewood, Mr A J King, MBE 
and Mr J D Simmonds 
 

Liberal Democrat (1): Mr T Prater 
 

Labour (1) Mr G Cowan 
 

 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public) 

 
 
 
 

1. Substitutes  

2. Declarations of Interests by Members in items on the Agenda for this meeting.  

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 18 January 2013 (Pages 1 - 4) 

4. Terms and Conditions for Public Health Staff (Pages 5 - 8) 

 

EXEMPT ITEMS 

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items.  During any such items 
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public) 



 
Peter Sass 
Head of Democratic Services  
(01622) 694002 
 
Monday, 11 March 2013 
 
 
Please note that any background documents referred to in the accompanying papers 
maybe inspected by arrangement with the officer responsible for preparing the relevant 
report. 
 



 

1 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Personnel Committee held in the Wantsum Room, 
Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Friday, 18 January 2013. 
 
PRESENT: Mr R W Gough (Vice-Chairman), Mr G Cowan, Mr P J Homewood, 
Mr A J King, MBE, Mr T Prater, Mr K H Pugh and Mr M A Wickham  (substitute for Mr 
Dance). 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Mrs A Beer (Corporate Director Human Resources), Mr C Miller 
(Reward Manager), Mr P Royel (Head of Employment Strategy) and Mrs A Hunter 
(Principal Democratic Services Officer). 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
 
37. Minutes of the Meeting held on 29 November 2012  
(Item 3) 
 
The minute of the meeting held on 29 November 2012 were agreed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman subject to the inclusion of Mr Gough in the list of 
those present. 
 
38. Motion to Exclude the Press and Public  
(Item ) 
 
RESOLVED: that under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12 A of the Act. 
 
39. Terms and Conditions Review  
(Item 4) 
 
(Report by Mr Roger Gough – Cabinet Member for Business Strategy, Performance 
and Health Reform and Mrs Amanda Beer- Corporate Director Human Resources.  
Mr Colin Miller was present for this item) 
 
(1) Mr Miller introduced the report which made proposals to further modernise KCC’s 

approach to terms and conditions in a way that seeks to standardise, rationalise, 
give flexibility to meet service needs and deliver the required savings.   

 
(2) Since the last meeting of the Personnel Committee key managers had been 

consulted to gain views about the changes that could be made and the savings 
achieved.  The focus had been on areas of likely immediate savings although this 
needed to be viewed in the context of a long term approach of continually 
reviewing and adapting the total reward provision.   

 
(3) Mr Miller also outlined: changes proposed to arrangements for weekend, out of 

hours and overtime; a review of market premia criteria; a review of allowances 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



 

2 

(for stand-by, call out, sleep-ins and other unsocial hours) in line with changes to 
weekend, out of hours and overtime arrangements; changes to disturbance 
allowance and loss of earnings for new recipients.  He also said it was proposed 
to rationalise leave arrangements in the medium term and that detailed proposals 
would be returned to a meeting of the Personnel Committee if the principle of a 
review were agreed. 

 
(4) During the discussion Mr King proposed and Mr Pugh seconded a motion that 

the recommendation set out in paragraphs 8.1(i) and 8.1(ii) be amended to read 
“18 months”. 

 
Carried: For 5, Against 1 and Abstentions 1)   

 
(5) In accordance with paragraph 2.26 (3) of the Council’s constitution Mr Prater 

asked that it be recorded that he voted against the motion 
 
(6) In response to a question Mr Miller said that reducing the disturbance allowance 

and loss of earnings to 18 months might result in more people taking redundancy 
resulting in additional cost to the Council.   

 
(7) Mrs Beer confirmed that from a legal perspective notice could be given to staff to 

change terms and conditions, that with significant justifiable reasons mangers 
would be able to pay above or below the standardised rate and, to date, no 
requests for compensation had been received.  

 
(8) RESOLVED: 

(a) To recommend to the County Council the approach of rationalising 
enhancements and overtime rates to a standard provision of a one third 
increase which can be altered based on service delivery and business need 
(applies to staff currently receiving overtime and staff who will receive it in the 
future) and to include options for one off compensation for existing staff 
affected by the proposals.  

 
(b) To agree: 

(i) A reduction in the disturbance allowance to 18 months (applies to new 
recipients only) 

(ii) A reduction in loss of earnings compensation to 18 months to new 
recipients only) 

(iii) Use of the market premium payments in ICT (applies to staff currently 
receiving it.   

 
(c) To acknowledge the further work required as regards annual leave provisions 

and endorse the principles outlined in paragraph 3.3.1 and 3.5 of the report.  
 

(Voting: For 5, Against 1; Abstentions 1) 
 
40. Pay Bargaining Outcomes  
(Item 5) 
 
(Report by Mr Roger Gough – Cabinet Member for Business Strategy, Performance 
and Health Reform and Mrs Amanda Beer – Corporate Director Human Resources.  
Mr Royel – Head of Employment Strategy was present for this item)  

Page 2



 

3 

 
(1) Mr Royel introduced the report which provided a summary of the position for this 

year’s Local Bargaining process and sought the endorsement of the proposed 
increase before a decision by the full council. 

 
(2) Following a discussion about the living wage and the minimum wage it was 

proposed by Mr Prater and seconded by Mr Gough that a further report be 
presented to a future meeting of the Personnel Committee outlining the 
implications of the living wage for Kent County Council. 

 
Carried 
 
(3) RESOLVED: 
 

(a) To endorse and recommend to the County Council a pay award of 1% for 
2013/14 

 
(b) To consider a further report at a future meeting of the Personnel Committee 

outlining the implications of the living wage for Kent County Council.  
 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



By: Roger Gough – Cabinet Member for Business Strategy, 
Performance and Health Reform 
Amanda Beer - Corporate Director of Human Resources 

 
To: Personnel Committee 
 
Date:   19 March 2013 
 
Subject:   Terms and Conditions for Public Health Staff 
 
Classification:   Unrestricted 
 

 
SUMMARY: This paper makes recommendations to Personnel Committee about the 

organisational position of the Public Health division and on Terms and 
Conditions for new recruits to Public Health Specialist and Professional 
posts. 

 

  
 
1. BACKGROUND 
 
On 1 April 2013, responsibilities for Public Health functions will transfer to Local 
Authorities and to Public Health England (PHE).  With the exception of the screening 
and immunisation team, which will transfer to PHE, Public Health staff from the West 
Kent and Eastern and Coastal Kent Primary Care Trusts (PCTs) will transfer to the 
employment of Kent County Council. 
 
The transfer of the Public Health workforce to KCC does not fall within the Transfer 
of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006, generally referred to 
as TUPE, but will be covered by a statutory staff transfer scheme enacted under the 
Health and Social Care Act 2012. 
 
 
2. TRANSFER SCHEME 
 
The draft wording of the transfer scheme has now been sent to Local Authorities.  
This includes the following: 
 

a) A list of staff to be transferred  
This has been agreed between the PCTs and KCC as those who are currently 
assigned to the Public Health activities that are being transferred. 
 

b) A clause relating to NHS Pension scheme membership 
PCT staff transferring to Local Authorities, who are currently members of the 
NHS Pension Scheme, will retain their entitlement to continue in the scheme 
whilst they remain in the same post and, in certain circumstances, will remain 
eligible when later moving to different posts, including all those in Public 
Health Specialist and Professional roles. 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



 2 

c) A ‘TUPE-like’ clause relating to NHS terms and conditions 
Transferees will have a period of protection whereby their terms and 
conditions cannot be varied for a 2 year period commencing 1 April 2013 
unless by dismissal and re-engagement for an ‘Economic, Technical or 
Organisational’ (ETO) reason.  This would have to withstand the usual ETO 
tests that would apply in TUPE situations. 
 

 
3.  ORGANISATIONAL POSITION OF PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION 
 
During the transition to the new public health system, the Director of Public Health 
(DPH) for Kent has been employed by the Kent and Medway PCT Cluster, notionally 
reporting to the Corporate Director of Families and Social Care. 
 
The DPH will transfer to the employment of KCC on 1 April 2013 and PHE is 
confirming, by letter to the DPH, the statutory appointment between the Secretary of 
State and Local Authority.   
 
Department of Health Guidance is that there should be direct accountability between 
a DPH and the Chief Executive or Head of Paid Service for the exercise of their 
Local Authority’s public health responsibilities and direct access to elected members.  
With effect from 1 April 2013, it is therefore proposed that the DPH for Kent will 
report to KCC’s Head of Paid Service, the Corporate Director for Business Strategy 
and Support. 
 
 
4. TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR NEW RECRUITS TO PUBLIC HEALTH 
 
The default position for all new starters to any Division in KCC is that they are 
appointed to the Kent Scheme Terms and Conditions of Employment (the ‘Blue 
Book’).  There are exceptions for professional groups such as Teachers, who are 
covered by the statutory School Teachers’ Pay and Conditions Document ,and 
Educational Psychologists who have ‘Soulbury’ national pay scales. 
 
Public Health Specialists will, in most cases, need to be recruited from careers within 
the NHS.  There are two routes to qualify as a Public Health Consultant.  Both 
require 5 years post graduate training in Public Health and can be either from a 
medical or other professional background.  Consultants who are medical graduates 
will be on NHS medical terms and conditions.  Public Health Consultants qualifying 
via a portfolio route are placed on NHS ‘Agenda for Change’ terms and conditions.   
 
Other Public Health professionals, including for Health Improvement and Public 
Health Intelligence roles, may also need to be recruited from the NHS and will be on 
‘Agenda for Change’ terms and conditions.  
 
In order to attract those whose careers are likely to move around the Public Health 
system, it seems likely that KCC will need to be in a position to offer new appointees, 
to Public Health specialist and professional roles, the same terms and conditions as 
they would be offered within the NHS so that this is not a barrier to recruitment.   
 

Page 6



 3 

Parity with the NHS will mean that Public Health remains an attractive career option 
for professionals within the NHS by encouraging free movement in and across Local 
Government and the NHS.  It also avoids pay differentials creating recruitment and 
retention difficulties. 
 
It is therefore proposed that KCC appoints Public Health Specialists and 
Professionals on ‘Agenda for Change’ and medical terms and conditions, as 
appropriate, for the first 2 years to align with the transfer scheme protections, 
although Blue Book terms and conditions could still be offered, as an alternative, for 
those appointed from other backgrounds.  This will enable KCC to consider what the 
market is doing and then take a longer term view on terms and conditions for new 
starters. 
 
It is accepted that administrative and managerial appointments to Public Health 
should, in future, be made on Blue Book terms and conditions, as the pool for 
recruitment to these posts will be broader than from NHS backgrounds. 
 
 
5. ACCESS TO THE NHS PENSION SCHEME 
 
As previously stated, the statutory transfer scheme provides for continued access to 
the NHS Pension Scheme for Public Health transferees.  There will be no eligibility to 
join the Local Government Pension Scheme unless voluntarily moving to a post 
outside of Public Health. 
 
For new recruits after 1 April 2013, as the Department of Health and Local 
Government Association recognise that it is necessary to facilitate future mobility 
between the NHS and Local Government, Local Authorities will be able to apply for 
an NHS Pensions Directions Order.  This will allow continued access to the NHS 
Pension Scheme for Public Health professionals and staff nearing retirement where 
a Local Authority recruits ‘new joiners’ to public health roles who have had access to 
the NHS Pension Scheme in the previous 12 months.  It is therefore proposed that 
KCC applies for a Directions Order to ensure that KCC vacancies for Public Health 
Specialist and professional posts are attractive to candidates who want to continue 
to be members of the NHS Pensions Scheme. 
 
 
6. FUTURE CHANGES TO TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
The Court of Justice of the European Union (CJEU) is currently considering whether 
staff transferring under TUPE must continue to have applied to them any changes 
made to their terms and conditions following transfer (known as the ‘dynamic’ 
approach).  Whilst the transfer of Public Health staff is not a TUPE transfer, the draft 
transfer scheme provides ‘TUPE-like’ protections for two years and we therefore 
need to consider what impact the CJEU decision is likely to have.  The Advocate 
General has recently delivered his opinion which is in favour of the dynamic 
approach.   

Page 7



 4 

 
The Public Health transfer scheme is silent on whether receiving organisations will 
have to apply future changes that are made nationally to the NHS Terms and 
Conditions.  A number of changes taking effect up to July 2013 have already been 
incorporated into NHS Terms and Conditions that will need to be applied post-
transfer as these form part of the contractual terms at the point of transfer.   
 
KCC’s Legal opinion is that, in the absence of any provision in the draft transfer 
scheme which specifies whether terms and conditions are to be treated as dynamic 
or static as at the point of transfer, KCC should be able to rely on the Advocate 
General’s opinion and apply future changes for at least the first two years after 
transfer, during which the transfer scheme has legal effect. 
 
It is therefore proposed that KCC applies future changes for a two year period which, 
subject to Personnel Committee agreement, will provide parity with any new recruits 
to Public Health on NHS terms and conditions. 
 
 
7. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Personnel Committee is invited to: 
 

a) Note the arrangements for the transfer of staff 
b) Agree the reporting line for the Director of Public Health 
c) Agree that Public Health Specialists and professionals can be appointed to 

KCC on NHS terms and conditions which will be reviewed for new recruits 
beyond 31st March 2015 

d) Agree that KCC applies for an open directions order for the NHS Pension 
Scheme  

e) Agree that KCC applies future changes that are made to NHS terms and 
conditions to the Public Health transferees until 31st March 2015. 

 
 
 
 
Karen Watson      Ian Allwright 
HR Business Partner – ELS & Public Health  Employment Policy 
Manager 
Ext 1890       Ext:  4778 
 

Page 8


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 18 January 2013
	4 Terms and Conditions for Public Health Staff

